
From: Carmen.Gustafson
To: Matthew.Ball; Katie.Munroe
Cc: Elaine.Cairns
Subject: RE: [EXT] 
Date: October 12, 2023 5:30:40 PM

 

 

Please do remind me at the beginning of November. 

Cheers,
 
-cg-
 
 

Carmen E. Gustafson (she/her)
Legal Counsel
Natural Resources and Environmental Law Group
T 867-667-5473 | Yukon.ca
 

Confidentiality Notice:  This email is directed solely to the intended addressee(s).  If you have received this email and you
are not an intended addressee, please notify the author immediately by return email and permanently delete the email from
your system without making a copy in any format.  If you are the intended addressee, please be aware that the contents of
this email may be disclosable under the Access to Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Yukon) or under the
Government of Yukon’s obligation to disclose documents involving the Government of Yukon.
 

From: Matthew.Ball <Matt.Ball@yukon.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 4:01 PM
To: Carmen.Gustafson <Carmen.Gustafson@yukon.ca>; Katie.Munroe <Katie.Munroe@yukon.ca>
Cc: Elaine.Cairns <Elaine.Cairns@yukon.ca>
Subject: RE: [EXT] 
 

Thanks Carmen, yes thanks for that reminder,
 

 

 
If there is anything else I am missing please let me know, thanks,
Matt
 

From: Carmen.Gustafson <Carmen.Gustafson@yukon.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 3:50 PM
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To: Matthew.Ball <Matt.Ball@yukon.ca>; Katie.Munroe <Katie.Munroe@yukon.ca>
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
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 3:43 PM
To: Carmen.Gustafson <Carmen.Gustafson@yukon.ca>; Katie.Munroe <Katie.Munroe@yukon.ca>
Cc: Elaine.Cairns <Elaine.Cairns@yukon.ca>
Subject: RE: [EXT] 
 
Thanks Carmen, 

 
Thank you,
Matt
 

From: Carmen.Gustafson <Carmen.Gustafson@yukon.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 3:01 PM
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
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 2:52 PM
To: Carmen.Gustafson <Carmen.Gustafson@yukon.ca>; Katie.Munroe <Katie.Munroe@yukon.ca>
Subject: FW: [EXT] 
 
Hi Carmen, 

 

From: Gau, Mike <mike.gau@whitehorse.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 2:36 PM
To: Matthew.Ball <Matt.Ball@yukon.ca>
Subject: RE: [EXT] 
 
Thanks Matt.  

.
 
Mike
 
 
 

From: Matthew.Ball <Matt.Ball@yukon.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 2:03 PM
To: Gau, Mike <mike.gau@whitehorse.ca>
Subject: RE: [EXT] 
 
Hi Mike, 
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As always please feel free to reach out,
Matt
 
 

From: Gau, Mike <mike.gau@whitehorse.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 10:24 AM
To: Matthew.Ball <Matt.Ball@yukon.ca>
Subject: [EXT] 
 
Hi Matt,
Further to our quick discussion this morning,

.
 
Hope this is helpful.
 
Mike
This message and any attachments are for the use of the intended recipient only and contain
information that is privileged and confidential. Should you receive this message in error, you are
hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender immediately. Thank you.
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
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From: Kimberly.Sova
To: Paul.Fairfield
Cc: Matthew.Ball
Subject: RE: 
Date: October 17  2023 4:35:24 PM
Attachments: image003.png

image004 ng
image005.png

 
Kimberly Sova
Legal Counsel
Department of Justice | Natural Resources and Environmental Law Group
T 867-667-5391 | Yukon.ca

 
Privileged & Confidential Communication: The content of th s e-mail communica ion and any attachments ( E-mail ) is subject to legal privilege and shou d not be disclosed to anyone outside the Government of Yukon ( YG ) without appropriate authorization and egal adv ce. This includes any
d sclosure in relation to any legal proceedings that YG may be involved in or any request for informat on received under the Access to Information and Protection of Privacy Act.
 
If you have come into possess on of this E-mail and are not the intended or authorized recipient, you are notif ed that YG expressly claims privilege over this E-mail and does not waive privilege to its contents. If you have received this E-ma l in error, please notify the sender immediately by return e-
ma l and permanently delete this E-mail from your system without making any copy in any format.
 
 
 

From: Paul.Fairfield <Paul.Fairfield@yukon.ca> 
Sent: Tuesday  October 17  2023 4 13 PM
To: Kimberly.Sova <Kimberly.Sova@yukon.ca>
Cc: Matthew.Ball <Matt.Ball@yukon.ca>
Subject: FW  
 
Hi Kim
 

 

 
Thanks
Paul
 

Paul Fairfield
A/Policy & Program Support Manager

Energy, Mines & Resources | Land Management Branch
T 867-334-4387 | paul.fairfield@yukon.ca | Yukon.ca

 

 
 

From: Matthew.Ball <Matt.Ball@yukon.ca> 
Sent: October 17  2023 4 00 PM
To: Paul.Fairfield <Paul Fairfield@yukon ca>
Subject: Re  
 
Hi Paul,  
 
Get Outlook for Android

From: Paul.Fairfield <Paul.Fairfield@yukon.ca>
Sent: Tuesday  October 17  2023 11 57 51 AM
To: Ben.Campbell <Ben.Campbell@yukon.ca>
Cc: Matthew.Ball <Matt.Ball@yukon.ca>; Susan.Antpoehler <Susan.Antpoehler@yukon.ca>
Subject: RE  
 
Hi Ben
 
Further to our conversation I spoke to Kim

 
      

      

      

      

 

 
Thanks
Paul
 

Paul Fairfield
A/Policy & Program Support Manager
Energy, Mines & Resources | Land Management Branch
T 867-334-4387 | paul.fairfield@yukon.ca | Yukon.ca

 

 
 

From: Ben.Campbell <Ben.Campbell@yukon.ca> 
Sent: October 16  2023 3 35 PM
To: Paul.Fairfield <Paul.Fairfield@yukon.ca>
Subject: RE  
 
Hi Paul
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Thanks
Ben

 
 

Ben Campbell
Senior Project Manager
Community Services | Land Development Branch
T 867-667-3453 | C 867-332-0576 | Yukon.ca
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From: Matthew.Ball
To: Kimberly.Sova
Subject:
Date: October 26, 2023 2:29:00 PM
Attachments: 2023 single family lottery package print no sketch.pdf

notice of changes to AFS.docx

Hi Kim,

 

 
Thank you,
Matt
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3       Lottery Package – March/April 2023 

INTRODUCTION 
As part of the Government of Yukon’s commitment to making land available to Yukoners, the  
Department of Energy, Mines and Resources, Land Management Branch is selling 83 
residential single family lots in Whistle Bend subdivision, including 10 green street lots. 
 
Applicants are responsible for reading and understanding all lottery documentation prior to 
submitting an application and for being familiar with the lottery requirements and process. 
Lottery documentation consists of the lottery package, guidelines, reports, sample agreement 
for sale, zoning and municipal information. All supporting information can be found on the 
website or by visiting the application office. 
 
 

IMPORTANT DATES 
Application closing date and time 
Applications will be accepted at the Application Office until April 18, 2023 at 4:30 pm (local 
time according to application office). Applications are not accepted after the closing date and 
time. 
 

Lottery draw date and time 
The lottery draw will take place on April 25, 2023. The draw will be streamed online. Please 
check the website closer to the draw date for draw time and video link.  
 

Lottery results 
Results will be available at the application office and online by end of day April 28, 2023. Lots 
not accepted within 24 hours of being offered will be offered to the next person on the draw 
list for the specific lot.  Remaining or forfeited lots may be made available for sale over the 
counter at the discretion of the Application Office.  
 
For unsuccessful applicants, the $300 deposit can be picked up at the application office 
between May 10 and May 25, 2023. Any cash deposits that remain unclaimed after May 25 will 
be returned by cheque to the applicant at the address provided on the application form. 
Unclaimed deposits made by cheque will be destroyed. 
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LOT AND SALE INFORMATION 
For zoning and development permitting information, refer to the package prepared by the City 
of Whitehorse, included on the lottery website or contact city officials at 867-668-8340 or 
online at http://www.whitehorse.ca   
 
Each lot is sold “as is, where is”.  All services are the responsibility of the purchaser.   
 
Applicants will have the option to list up to 10 lots in order of preference. 
 

Green Streets 
This release includes green street lots. Green streets are public right of ways, designed to be 
linear green spaces and envisioned to be “park like”. The intent of green streets is to encourage 
pedestrian activity, with access being limited to pedestrians, cyclists and emergency vehicles. 
These spaces help to support a strong sense of community and add to the unique character, 
look, and feel of the neighborhood. They provide a connection to open spaces for residents and 
the larger community. Homes front onto the green street, while rear lanes provide access. 
 

Interest rate 
The interest rate is fixed at five (5) percent or two and one-half (2.5) percentage points above 
the bank rate whichever is higher, pursuant to section 17 of the Lands Act and Lands 
Regulations OIC 1983/192. The Bank of Canada rate, as of March 7, is set at 4.75%. An interest 
rate of 7.25% will be applicable to any Agreement for Sale entered during this lottery 
process. 
 

Lot surveys and further information 
Survey plans can be viewed on the Canada Lands Surveys page at: 
Whistle Bend Phase 6B: Search for 110692 CLSR YT on NRCan’s Survey Plan Search tool at 
https://clss.nrcan-rncan.gc.ca/clss/plan/search-recherche 
Whistle Bend Phase 8:  Search for 111552 CLSR YT on NRCan’s Survey Plan Search tool at 
https://clss.nrcan-rncan.gc.ca/clss/plan/search-recherche 
An overview of all lots for sale can be viewed through the link on our website: 
https://yukon.ca/whistle-bend-lots  

 
Geotechnical information and foundation recommendations  
Reports are available for each of Phase 6B and 8 on the lottery website. 
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PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS 
The following are required as two separate items when submitting an application: 

 A non-refundable application fee of $26.25 ($25.00 plus GST) payable in cash, debit, 
or credit card; and   

 A $300.00 deposit payable by cheque or cash only. Cheques must be made payable 
to the Territorial Treasurer. 

SUCCESSFUL APPLICANT INFORMATION 
An Agreement for Sale is a contract between parties to sell and purchase land, pursuant to the 
Lands Act and Lands Regulations OIC 1983/192.  

 
 The term of the Residential Agreement for Sale is 5 years, with a 3 year building 

commitment for a residence with an occupancy permit. 
 The successful applicant must enter into an Agreement for Sale and supply the 

required down payment and GST within 14 days of the date the lot was offered or 
forfeit the lot. The successful applicant will also have to provide proof that they are 
eligible to buy residential land according to the requirements of the Act. 

 The effective date of the Agreement for Sale is the same day the lot was offered.  
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APPLICATION OFFICE 
 
Submit your application at our application office: Room 320, 3rd floor, Elijah Smith Building, 
Main Street, Whitehorse. The office is open Monday to Friday from 8:30 am to 4:30 pm. 
 
Application form and supporting information can be found on our website: 
https://yukon.ca/whistle-bend-lots 
For any other information, email us at land.disposition@yukon.ca or call us at 867-667-5215. 
 

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES 
 
Yukon Housing Corporation (YHC) 
programs 
867-667-5712 or 867-667-5759 
ykhouse@yukon.ca 
 
Plumbing, electrical and gas permits 
Building Safety 
867- 667-5741 / Toll Free: 1-800-661-0408 ex 
5741  
www.yukon.ca/en/building-renovating 
 
Municipal Property Tax & Utilities  
City of Whitehorse, Financial Services 
www.whitehorse.ca/departments/financial-
services/property-tax-utilities 
 
Property Assessments and Taxation 
Property Assessment & Taxation Branch  
867-667-5268 / Toll Free: 1-800-661-0408 ex 
5268 
 www.yukon.ca/en/property-tax-and-
assessments  

 
Zoning, development cost, building 
requirements and permits 
City of Whitehorse, Land and Building Services 
867-668-8346  
http://www.whitehorse.ca 
 
Telecommunication and internet 
NorthwesTel 
1-888-423-2333  
www.nwtel.ca 
 
Electrical services 
ATCO Electric Yukon 
867-633-7000 / Toll free: 1-800-661-0513  
www.atcoelectricyukon.com 
 
Postal services 
Canada Post 
1-866-607-6301 
www.canadapost.ca/cpc/en/home.page 
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SCHEDULE A: LOT SKETCHES  
 
 





From: Kimberly.Sova
To: Matthew.Ball
Subject: RE:
Date: October 27, 2023 2:40:16 PM
Attachments: image001.png

 

 
 

Kimberly Sova
Legal Counsel
Department of Justice | Natural Resources and Environmental Law Group
T 867-667-5391 | Yukon.ca

 
Privileged & Confidential Communication: The content of this e-mail communication and any attachments ("E-mail") is subject to legal
privilege and should not be disclosed to anyone outside the Government of Yukon ("YG") without appropriate authorization and legal
advice. This includes any disclosure in relation to any legal proceedings that YG may be involved in or any request for information
received under the Access to Information and Protection of Privacy Act.
 
If you have come into possession of this E-mail and are not the intended or authorized recipient, you are notified that YG expressly
claims privilege over this E-mail and does not waive privilege to its contents. If you have received this E-mail in error, please notify the
sender immediately by return e-mail and permanently delete this E-mail from your system without making any copy in any format.
 
 
 
 

From: Matthew.Ball <Matt.Ball@yukon.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, October 26, 2023 2:30 PM
To: Kimberly.Sova <Kimberly.Sova@yukon.ca>
Subject: 
 
Hi Kim,

 

.
 
Thank you,
Matt
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